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Official publications comprise all publications produced under the official aus-
pices of legislative bodies, decision-making and judicial organs, civil service 
departments, courts of law, independent institutions, committees, people in 
authority, etc. IFLA (International Federation of Library Associations and Insti-
tutions) describes official publications as follows:

“An official publication is defined by the status of the issuing source regardless of the 
subject-matter, content or physical form” (Nurcombe 1997, p. xix).  

“Official documents” is the general search term for material of this nature in the 
Nordic Africa Institute’s online library catalogue, AfricaLit. The library began 
acquiring official publications in 1962 when the Nordic Africa Institute com-
menced its activities, since they were considered to constitute fundamental and 
crucial source material within the field of the social sciences. With time, an 
acquisition profile came to be established in line with the library’s subject focus 
and based on the material’s significance, accessibility and demand. Official pu-
blications are essential to scholarly social studies on Africa as they are primary 
information sources for economic, legal, government and political data and are 
considered to be of lasting value. 

   An important problem to keep in mind regarding official publications from 
certain African countries is the question of reliability. The reason being that 
such publications may be used as mouthpieces by governmental powers in order 
to further their political goals or to give expression to political values during 
times of crisis. This mainly concerns countries with small volumes of official 
documents that tend to limit access to information. Thus, collections of official 
publications from colonial times should also be read with a critical eye. Political 
instability and catastrophes that repeatedly befall the African continent someti-
mes make it impossible to gain access to certain official publications. A connec-
tion can be made between conflict and war on the one hand and the number of 
official documents issued on the other. In addition, the economic crisis affecting 
many African states has left a mark on the way in which public administra-
tions function in those countries. Other problems arise when certain official 
publications are difficult to obtain, as few lists are available for checking newer 
publications and also because, in the absence of a central government printer, 
it is sometimes necessary for various sectors of the government administration 
to publish their own material. Library acquisitions are made via agents, from 

http://www.nai.uu.se/library/resources/africalit/index.xml?Language=en
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bookshops, by direct contact with the producers, or through embassies. Today it 
is possible to procure official publications via email in certain cases, for example 
from central statistical agencies.

Nowadays, authorities with the important task of disseminating basic de-
cision-making data are choosing with greater frequency to make their official 
publications available on the Internet. The range, however, is still uneven. Some 
states offer a rich collection of official publications in full text, many in PDF 
format; there are other countries that supply only a limited number of official 
publications in summarised form. Yet it can be anticipated that a basic range of 
official publications from all of Africa’s countries will be available on the Internet 
before long, in the form of constitutions, censuses, development plans, budgets, 
economic reports, statistics, and so on. A problem, however, is that this type of 
material could be removed as soon as it loses its current interest value. Therefore, 
the Nordic Africa Institute, with its aim of preserving such publications for futu-
re research, must continue to purchase them in the form of printed publications 
or CD-ROMs. Presently under discussion are questions of copyright policy re-
garding the preservation of important documents only available on the Internet. 

On the IFLA’s website Government Information and Official Publications, the 
debate surrounding government information and official publications can be 
followed. 

A large selection of the Nordic Africa Institute library’s collection of official 
publications can be located in the library catalogue, AfricaLit, and in the Swe-
dish union catalogue, LIBRIS. A small number of older publications held by 
the library are uncatalogued and are kept in storage. It is quite simple to search 
in AfricaLit. If, for example, one enters “official documents Kenya”, the search 
result will be a list of official documents from Kenya that are available in the 
library. In recent years the growing number of official publications being cata-
logued in LIBRIS has led to an increase in the demand for such material. The 
library at the Nordic Africa Institute lends out official publications (on a 3-week 
reading room loan), chiefly to Nordic research libraries. 

Heavy, dull and monotonous official publications are now being replaced 
by monograph-type formats that make for easier reading. It is enough to take 
a quick look at publications to see that there are not only figures and tables in 
these publications, but also pictures, colour maps and diagrams, printed on high 
quality paper. In short, these volumes are easy to handle and pleasant to read.    

Main groups of official publications

1.  Parliamentary documents, bills and other related documents: annual and au-
dit reports, official reports of investigations commissions, budget proposals 
and reports, conference papers, policy documents, etc. 

2.  Parliamentary debates: the Nordic Africa Institute’s library holds a parti-
cularly comprehensive collection of debates from South Africa’s parliament.  

http://www.ifla.org/en/taxonomy/term/480
http://www.nai.uu.se/library/resources/africalit/
http://libris.kb.se/
http://www.nai.uu.se/library/resources/africalit/
http://libris.kb.se/
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3.  Constitutions and legislation. 
4.  Statistics: annual statistics, statistical abstracts, national accounts, economic 

and financial indicators, as well as statistical data on agriculture, education, 
housing, health issues, transport, tourism, the environment, gender, labour, 
migration, trade and industry. Also available are household surveys and sta-
tistics concerning household consumption, social conditions, etc.  

5.  Population censuses: at regional as well as national level. These are probably 
the most important statistical data.  

6.  Development plans, both national and local.  
7.  Policy documents concerning all areas of interest in the field of social sci-

ences.  
8.  Research reports.  
9.  Government gazettes: older collections have been kept and are available for 

studies in the Nordic Africa Institute Library.

Official publications on the Internet 

One of the most important websites for official publications on the Internet is 
WorldLII (World Legal Information Institute). It is a useful website with many 
links that also include legislation. In the Nordic Africa Institute’s link collection, 
A Guide to Africa on the Internet, compiled by the library, you find links to both 
governments and official documents. T e Keele Guide to African Government and 
Politics on the Internet is another useful link collection.

The World Bank’s web page Te World Bank – Countries and Regions includes 
a comprehensive collection of official publications with documents in full text. 
Most documents are scanned from the originals. Here you can find various types 
of statistics, such as household surveys, policy documents, etc. The most inte-
resting collections relate to countries for which it is usually very difficult to find 
documents, such as Angola, Mali, Benin and São Tomé e Príncipe. Te World 
Bank – Poverty Reduction and Equity concerns mainly poverty follow-up and as-
sessment.

 
On the website of the African Development Bank there are collections 

about subjects such as country strategies, gender profiles, economic reports and 
poverty reduction and follow-up.

The website of the International Monetary Fund, IMF, holds collections of 
strategies for poverty reduction Poverty reduction strategy papers (PRSP). These 
have been prepared in collaboration with the governments of the individual 
countries. The documents provide a concrete picture of the macroeconomic pre-
requisites and various structural and social action programmes to reduce pover-
ty. The database also covers a collection of current statistics within various areas. 

The documents are updated every third year. The collections are available 
for most of the African countries. A similar site is the portal Planipolis which 
is maintained by UNESCO and holds education plans and policies from most 
African countries. You can also find Poverty reduction strategies on this website.

http://www.worldlii.org/cgi-bin/gen_region.pl?region=250
http://www.nai.uu.se/library/resources/guidetoafrica/
http://www.keele.ac.uk/depts/por/afbase.htm
http://www.keele.ac.uk/depts/por/afbase.htm
http://web.worldbank.org/WBSITE/EXTERNAL/COUNTRIES/0,,pagePK:180619~theSitePK:136917,00.html
http://web.worldbank.org/WBSITE/EXTERNAL/TOPICS/EXTPOVERTY/EXTPA/0,,contentMDK:20202860~menuPK:435735~pagePK:148956~piPK:216618~theSitePK:430367~isCURL:Y,00.html
http://web.worldbank.org/WBSITE/EXTERNAL/TOPICS/EXTPOVERTY/EXTPA/0,,contentMDK:20202860~menuPK:435735~pagePK:148956~piPK:216618~theSitePK:430367~isCURL:Y,00.html
http://www.afdb.org/en/countries/
http://www.imf.org/external/np/prsp/prsp.asp
http://planipolis.iiep.unesco.org
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Demographic and Health Surveys is a website produced by the US Agency for 
International Development (USAID). Here you can find official documents and 
statistics relating to population, health and nutrition for many African countri-
es. Statistical collections contain unique data and provide information about 
subjects such as ethnic groups, education, female circumcision, etc.

   
For the French-speaking African countries, there are some interesting web-

sites. For example, Investir en Zone Franc contains statistics, and AFRISTAT gives 
economic, social and environmental statistics from its 19 member states in main-
ly Francophone Africa. The website includes, for example, ’Bulletin de Données 
Conjoncturelles’ with statistics and economic indicators for the member countries.

   
Constitutions can also be found on the Internet. Three websites that may 

be useful are: Constitute, which is developed by the Comparative Constitutions 
Project at University of Texas in Austin, Constitution Finder (The School of Law, 
University of Richmond), and International Constitutional Law (Institut für öf-
fentliches Recht, Universität Bern). On Law Library of Congress there are links 
to various websites. A database that is now online is Database of the Constitutions 
of Sub-Saharan Africa with a collection of constitutions as well as amendments 
and constitutional bills. The documents are provided in their original language 
and, if available, in their English translation. The database was set up with the 
support of the German Foundation for Peace Research for a research project at 
the University of Konstanz.

   
On the Internet, you can also find various parliamentary documents, bills 

and other documents as well as collections of legislation. On the Inter-Parlia-
mentary Union’s website, there is a link collection to practically all parliaments, 
Websites of National Parliaments, and PARLINE Database, which contains infor-
mation on the structure and working methods of most parliaments in the world.

   Many African governments have separate websites for each department or 
ministry. For example, if you are interested in health in Namibia you can go to 
the website of the Namibia Ministry of Health and Social Service to find health 
surveys and policy documents in full text.

National statistical agencies

In A Guide to Africa on the Internet you can find links to the central statistics 
agencies of most African countries under the heading ‘Links sorted according 
to region or country – (Statistics)’. Development is rapid, and new links are 
continually being added. Many African statistical offices have websites with a 
lot of publications available in full text. Uganda Bureau of Statistics, National 
Institute of Statistics of Rwanda, National Bureau of Statistics - Tanzania, and 
Statistics South Africa are some examples of websites where you can find recent 
statistic publications, e.g. censuses, statistical yearbooks and surveys. On the 
United Nations website, there is a collection of almost all National Statistical 
Offices in the world. 

http://www.measuredhs.com/countries/start.cfm
http://www.izf.net/espace_general/
http://www.afristat.org/
http://www.afristat.org/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=387&Itemid=41
http://www.afristat.org/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=387&Itemid=41
https://www.constituteproject.org/
http://confinder.richmond.edu/
http://www.servat.unibe.ch/icl/
http://www.loc.gov/law/help/guide/nations.php
http://www.polver.uni-konstanz.de/holzinger/forschung/drittmittelprojekte/traditional-institutions-in-sub-saharan-africa/datenbank/
http://www.polver.uni-konstanz.de/holzinger/forschung/drittmittelprojekte/traditional-institutions-in-sub-saharan-africa/datenbank/
http://www.ipu.org/english/parlweb.htm
http://www.ipu.org/parline-e/parlinesearch.asp
http://www.mhss.gov.na/
http://www.nai.uu.se/library/resources/guidetoafrica/subject/?cat=1138869971-59#cat-display
http://www.ubos.org/
http://www.statistics.gov.rw/
http://www.statistics.gov.rw/
http://www.nbs.go.tz
http://beta2.statssa.gov.za/
http://unstats.un.org/unsd/methods/inter-natlinks/sd_natstat.asp
http://unstats.un.org/unsd/methods/inter-natlinks/sd_natstat.asp
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National banks

The official publications collection also includes a number of publications from 
national banks that are of interest. In the link collection A Guide to Africa on the 
Internet you can find links to the national banks of various countries (Banks). 
Just like the statistical agencies, many websites of the national banks in Africa 
provides their publications in full text. Bank of Ghana, Central Bank of Kenya 
and Bank of Botswana all have recent annual reports and bank bulletins available 
online. Angola also has data collections with economic indicators and other 
types of statistics – that are not easy to find – under Banco Nacional de Angola 

   For French-speaking West Africa, there are links to national banks in Ban-
que Centrale des États de l’Afrique de l’Ouest (BCEAO). For Cameroon, Central 
African Republic, Congo, Gabon, Equatorial Guinea and Chad, there are links 
in Banque des États de l’Afrique Centrale (BEAC). For more links, see also the 
wiki List of Central Banks and Central Bank Websites.
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Alleviation of poverty
Poverty Reduction Strategy Papers (PRSP) http://www.imf.org/external/np/prsp/prsp.asp

Constitutions
Constitute https://www.constituteproject.org 
Constitution Finder http://confinder.richmond.edu/
Database of Te Constitutions of Sub-Saharan Africa 
http://www.polver.uni-konstanz.de/holzinger/forschung/drittmittelprojekte/traditional-

institutions-in-sub-saharan-africa/datenbank/
International Constitutional Law http://www.servat.unibe.ch/icl/
Law Library of Congress http://www.loc.gov/law/help/guide/nations.php

Parliaments
Namibia Ministry of Health and Social Service http://www.mhss.gov.na/
PARLINE Database http://www.ipu.org/parline-e/parlinesearch.asp
Web Sites of National Parliaments www.ipu.org/english/parlweb.htm

National statistical agencies
National Institute of Statistics of Rwanda http://www.statistics.gov.rw/
National Bureau of Statistics – Tanzania http://www.nbs.go.tz/
Statistics South Africa http://beta2.statssa.gov.za/
Uganda Bureau of Statistics http://www.ubos.org/
United Nations (National Statistical Offices) 
http://unstats.un.org/unsd/methods/inter-natlinks/sd_natstat.asp

National banks
Banco Nacional de Angola http://www.bna.ao/
Bank of Botswana

 
http://www.bankofbotswana.bw/

Bank of Ghana
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Banque Centrale des États de l’Afrique de l’Ouest http://www.bceao.int
Banque des États de l’Afrique Centrale http://www.beac.int
Central Bank of Kenya https://www.centralbank.go.ke/
Central Bank Websites http://www.bis.org/cbanks.htm
List of Central Banks http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/List_of_central_bank
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